
	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 		

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	
 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

Letter to Karla	 Johnson 
Herefordshire Council 

4 January 2019 

Dear Karla,	 

Examination	of the Bosbury	 and	 Catley	 Neighbourhood	Plan 
Amendment to the Basic Conditions 

I	 am writing to draw your attention to the Conservation of Habitats and Species and 
Planning (Various Amendments) (England and Wales) Regulations 2018 which came 
into force on 28 December 2018. 

Amongst	 other things, these Regulations amend the basic condition prescribed in 
Regulation 32 and Schedule 2 (Habitats) of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended) which stated: 

§ The making of the neighbourhood plan is not	 likely to have a	 significant	 effect	 
on a	 European site or a	 European offshore marine site either alone or in	 
combination with other plans or projects. 

The Regulations substitute a new basic condition which states: 

§ The making of the neighbourhood development	 plan	 does	 not	 breach	 the 
requirements 	of	Chapter	8 	of	Part	6	of the 	Conservation	of Habitats	and	 
Species Regulations 2017. 

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 include regulations on 
the assessment	 of plans (including neighbourhood plans) and projects on European 
sites or European offshore marine sites.		 The first	 stage is to screen the plan to see 
whether it	 is likely to have a	 significant	 effect	 on any European site. If the plan is 
‘screened in’ because significant	 effects cannot	 be ruled out, the next	 stage is for an 
appropriate assessment	 to be carried out	 considering the impact	 on the European 
site’s conservation objectives. Consent	 for the plan can only be given if it	 is 
‘screened out’ at	 the first	 stage or the appropriate assessment	 concludes the 
integrity of the European site will not	 be adversely affected. 

Case law (People Over Wind, Peter Sweetman v Coillte Teoranta) ruled that	 it	 is not	 
permissible to take account	 of measures intended to reduce or avoid any harmful 
effects of a	 plan or project	 on a	 European site at	 the screening stage. This	 
represented a	 move away from what	 was common practice. Any ‘mitigation’ 
measures can now only be considered at	 the appropriate assessment	 stage. 



	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 			
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 		
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
 
	

This resulted in some confusion as to whether neighbourhood plans ‘screened in’ 
could progress because of the wording of the basic condition. 

The substituted basic condition removes this confusion; it	 gives certainty that	 those 
neighbourhood plans which have been ‘screened in’ and therefore require 
appropriate assessment	 can continue to progress (provided that	 the requirements of	 
Chapter 8 of Part	 6 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 are 
met). 

The 	process for appropriate assessment	 of neighbourhood plans is the same as 
assessments for Local Plans. 

There are no transitional arrangements and so the substituted basic condition 
applies from 28 December 2018. It	 will therefore apply to any neighbourhood plans 
currently at	 examination or those submitted for examination on or after 28 
December 2018. 

As all basic conditions must	 be met	 by a	 neighbourhood plan before it	 can proceed, I	 
would be grateful if you would consider this change to the basic conditions and let	 
me know of any implications arising from it	 for the examination of this	 
neighbourhood plan. I	 will reach my own view on this matter as well. 

Once you have had an opportunity to consider what, if any, further work needs to be 
undertaken, I	 suggest	 that	 we agree a	 way forward for the examination of the 
Neighbourhood Plan, including any new timescales should further work be required. 

This letter should be placed on the relevant	 Council	 websites. 

With many thanks, 

Ann Skippers MRTPI 
Ann Skippers Planning 
Independent	 Examiner 


